ශී ලංකා ජනරජයේ ගැසට් පතුය

THE GAZETTE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA (CEYLON)

අංක 49 — 1973 මාර්තු 02 වැනි සිකුරාද — 1973.03.02 No. 49 — FRIDAY, MARCH 02, 1973

(Published by Authority)

PART IV - LOCAL GOVERNMENT

(Separate paging is given to each language of every Part in a der that it may be filed separately.)

	PAGE			PAGE
Local Government Notifications	115	Statements of Revenue & Expenditure		`
Posts - Vacant				
Examinations, Results of Examinations, &c	116	Budgets	. • •	
By-Laws	116	Sele of Properties	4:4	·
Notices under the Local Authorities Elections				
Ordinance	·	Miscellaneous Notices	***	118

Note.—Gem (Amnesty) Bill was published as a Supplement to Part II of the Gazette of the Republic of Sri Lanka (Ceylon) of February 15, 1973.

Local Government Notifications

THE DEHIOWITA TOWN COUNCIL

The Public Performance Ordinance

RULE made by the Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs by virtue of the powers vested in him by section 3 of the Public Performance Ordinance (Chapter 176).

FELIX R. D. BANDARANAIKE, Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs.

Colombo, 12.2.1973.

Rule

The Rules made under the Public Performance Ordinance (Chapter 176) and published in *Gazette* No. 7,004 of April, 1919 as last amended by rule published in *Gazette* No. 14,757 of July 13, 1967 are hereby further amended in so far as they relate to the area within the administrative limits of the Deliiowita Town

Council, by the substitution, for rule A 3 thereof, of the following new rule—

"A 3 (1) An application for a licence for the use of any building for any public performance to which persons are admitted on payment, shall before such licence is issued to him pay to the Council a fee calculated at the following rates"

F	day		month	e ter	r one ye minati n Dec.	ng 31
<i>i</i> *		c.	Rs.	c.	Rs.	c.
Where the number of persons for whom seating accommodation is provided does not exceed 199. Where the number of persons for whom seating accommodation is provided exceeds 199 but does not	3	0.	. 30	0	150	0
exceed 499		0.	. 60	0	200	0
Where the number of persons for whom seating accommodation is provided exceeds 499					300	0
3-11—Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02						•

THE VILLAGE COUNCILS ORDINANCE

BY virtue of the powers vested in me by sections 5 and 10 of the Village Councils Ordinance (Chapter 257), I, Felix Reginald Dias Bandaranaike, Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs, do by this Order revoke the Order relating to the constitution of the new village areas of Siyambalanduwa and Dombagahawela in the Divisional Revenue Officer's division of Siyambalanduwa in Moneragala District published in Gazette Extraordinary No. 28/4 October 9, 1972.

FELIX R. D. BANDARANAIKE, Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs.

Colombo, February 13, 1973. 3-16—Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING FORWARDING OF NOTICES FOR PUBLICATIONS IN THE WEEKLY GAZETTE

ATTENTION is drawn to the Important Notice, appearing at the end of each part of this Gasette regarding dates of Publication of the future weekly Gasette and the latest times by which Notices will be accepted by the Government Printer for publication therein. All notices for publication in the Gasette received out of times specified in the said notice will be returned to the senders concerned.

Department of Government Printing, Colombo, June 2, 1970. L. W. P. Parars, Government Printer.

THE CHILAW TOWN

The Urban Councils Ordinance

PROPERTY RATE FOR 1973

IT is hereby notified that the Special Commissioner, Chilaw Town, has under section 160 of the Urban Councils Ordinance (Chapter 255) and with the approval of the Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs, given by virtue of the powers vested in him by that section imposed for the year 1973, subject to such limitations, qualifications, and conditions as may be prescribed by the Special Commission.

sioner a property rate of fifteen per centum of the annual value of all immovable properties situated within the Town of Chilaw payable in four equal instalments on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, respectively.

P. SIRIWARDENE, Secretary,
Ministry of Public Administration,
Local Government and Home Affairs.

Colombo, January 31, 1972. 3-10—Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE SPECIAL COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE, KAHAWATTA

The Town Councils Ordinance SPECIAL CONSERVANCY RATE FOR

IT is hereby notified that the Special Commissioner Rahawatta. Town, has under section 129 (b) of the Town Councils Ordinance (Chapter 256), and with the sanction of the Commissioner of Local Government, given by the of the fowers delegated to him, imposed for the year 1973, subject to such

limits and elemptions as may be prescribed by by-laws, a special constrainty are rate of four per centum of the annual value of all immovable property situated within the town of kahawatta payable in four equal instalments on March 31, hours 30, September 30 and December 31, respectively.

W. E. V. S. DE ALWIS, Commissioner of Local Government.

Colombo, February 6, 1973. 3-69-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

Examinations, Results of Examinations, &c.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICE

E.B. Examination for Superintendents of Works/Waterworks IT is hereby notified that the following officer has completed the above Efficiency Bar Examination:—

1. W. D. Sumanasiri-M. C., Colombo.

EDGAR FERNANDO, Secretary, Local Government Service Commission.

P. O. Box 530, Colombo, 24th January, 1973. 3-19-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICE

Efficiency Bar Examination for Public Health Inspectors—1972 THE following candidate has completed the Examination:

1. U. G. Robinson.

The following candidates have passed only in the subject Oral and Practical $\lq\lq: --$

Nandasekera-Oral and Practical. 2. H. W. Piyasena-Oral and Practical.

EDGAR FERNANDO,

Secretary,
Local Government Service Commission.

P. O. Box 530, Colombo, 24th January, 1973. 3-20-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

By-Laws

L. D.-B. 7/66.

THE BADULLA MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

The Municipal Councils Ordinance

BY-LAW made by the Municipal Council of Badulla states sections 267 and 272 of the Municipal Councils Officance (Chapter 252), and approved by the Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs and confirmed by the National Assembly under section 268 of that Ordinance.

P. SIRIWARDENE, Additional Secretary,
Ministry of Public Administration,
Local Government and Home Affairs.

Colombo, 19.2.1973.

BY-LAW RELATING TO FAIRS

The by laws hade the Badulla Municipal Council under sections 267 and 272 of the Municipal Councils Ordinance and published in Gazette No. 14,896 of March, 5, 1970, are hereby amended by the substitution, in by-law f 1thereof, for the expression "Poya Day", of the expression " Sunday ".

3-172-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

L. D.—B. 180/39.

THE GALLE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

The Municipal Councils Ordinance

BY-LAWS made by the Municipal Council of Galle under sections 267 and 272 of the Municipal Councils Ordernice (Chapter 252), approved by the Minister of Public Achievistration, Local Government and Home Affairs by virtue of the powers vested in him by section 268 of that Ordinance and confirmed by the National State Assembly.

P. SERIWARDENE,
Additional Secretary,
Ministry of Public Administration, Local
Government and Home Affairs.

Colombo, 12.2.1973.

RELATING TO PUBLIC LIBRARY

1. The Sublet library established and maintained by the Galle Municipal Council shall consist of:—

(a) Lending Library;
(b) a Reference Library;
(c) a Reading Room; and
(d) a Children's Library;

2. (1) The general administration of the public library shall be vested in a library Committee (hereinafter referred to as the "Committee") composed of—

(a) the Mayor for the time being of the Galle Municipal Council;

Council;

(b) the Secretary of the Council who shall function as exofficio Secretary of the Committee;

(c) such other Members of the Galle Municipal Council not exceeding four as may be elected by the Council;

(d) seven prominent residents of the Municipal area, elected by the Galle Municipal Council.

(2) The librarian in charge of the public library shall be responsible for the maintenance of order in such library.

- 3. (1) The Mayor of the Galle Municipal Council shall be ex-officio President of the Committee and he shall preside at every meeting of the Committee. In the absence of the Mayor at any meeting, such member of the Committee as rusy be elected for the purpose by the other members present, shall preside at that meeting.
- (2) The presiding member at any meeting shall have an original vote and a casting vote if the votes cast on any question are equal.
- 4. No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the Committee unless there is a quorum of 3 members.
- 5. The Committee shall have the power to allow any person to use any part of the premises of the public library, subject to such conditions as it may deem necessary, or to refuse such person the use of any part of those premises, if such person has contravened any of these by-laws relating to the library.

LENDING LIBRARY

- 6. (1) No person shall be admitted as a member of the Lending Library unless he.
 - (a) is not less than 12 years of age;
 - (b) is literate;
 - (c) is resident, or has an office or a place of business within the Municipal limits;
 - (d) deposits with the Librarian a sum of Rs. 5 for the removal of one book, and Rs. 10 for the removal of two books.
 - (e) is recommended by the owner or occupier of a house fetching a monthly rental of not less than Rs. 25.
- (2) Every person desirous of being admitted as a member of the Lending Library shall make application in that behalf on the form obtainable from the librarian and shall have such application endorsed by anyone of the following persons who shall be deemed to be the guarantor:
 - (a) a member of National State Assembly;
 - (b) a member of Galle Municipal Council;
 - (c) a member of the Committee;
 - (d) a Minister of Religion;
 - (e) a member of the medical or legal profession;
 - (f) a Justice of the Peace;
 - (g) a government servant whose name appears in the Civil List;
 - (h) a Principal of a Maha Vidyalaya; or
 - (i) a member of the Local Government Services residing within the administrative limits of the Local Authority where the library is situated, and whose current basic annual salary is not less than its: 1,500 per annum.
- (3) The Guarantor shall be liable for all fines, loss of books and other reading material, incurred by the member, and shall not be a guarantor for more than two members.
- (4) No person who is entitled under paragraph (2) to endorse an application shall be required to have his own application so endorsed.
- 7. The librarian shall issue one tiffet for a deposit of Rs. 5 and two tickets for a deposit of Rst/10 to every person who is admitted as a member of the Lenging Library and such person shall be entitled to borrow one book on each such ticket.
- 8. A member of the Lending Library shall be responsible for any book removed from such library on a ticket issued to him.
- 9. Where a member of the Lending Library loses a ticket issued to him under by-law 7 be shall immediately give notice of such loss to the librarian. If the librarian is satisfied that no book has been borrowed from the Lending Library on such ticket, he may issue to such member a duplicate ticket on the payment of a sum of centre fifty. No such duplicate ticket on the payment of a sum of centre fifty. No such duplicate ticket shall be issued by the librarian unless there has elapsed a period of not less than thirty days from the date on which the loss was brought to his notice. The issue of a duplicate shall not release a borrower from his responsibility for books which may at any time be taken out with his original tickets.

 10. Any change of residence or of official address on the part of the borrower must be intimated in writing to the librarian within one week of such change under penalty of the forfeiture of the borrowers deposit and tickets and the cancellation of the same at the discretion of the Librarian.
- 11. Borrowers ceasing to reside within the Municipal limits, are required to return their tickets to the Library, in order to have them cancelled; otherwise they shall be held responsible for any books taken out in their names.

- 12. Membership should be renewed every year. Such renewal shall not involve any fresh deposit, but only the filling up of the normal Membership application form guaranteed by one of those specified in by-law 6 (2) (a) to (i).
- 13. Any book borrowed by a member from the Lending Library shall be returned to the Librarian within a period of fourteen days from the date on which it was borrowed. The member may be allowed by the Librarian to borrow any such book for a further period of fourteen days, if it is not required by any other member. Books may be so renewed by producing them personally or through the Guarantor, at the Library.
- 14. Where a member fails to return any book to has borrowed from the Lending Library to the Librarian within the period of fourteen days referred to in By-law 13, he shall be liable to a fine of ten cents for each day the book is overdue.
- 15. Where a member fails to return the book he has borrowed from the Lending Library within 30 days from the date on which it was borrowed, the Library Authority shall be entitled to take steps to recover from the borrower or the guarantor, by action at law, with costs, the book, or at the option of the Library Authority, the value thereof, plus detention fees due on such overdue book, in terms of by law 14.
- overdue book, in terms of belaw 14.

 16. No member shall fremage or injure in any manner any book he has borrowed from the Lending Library. Members are requested to keep the books clean. They shall not turn down leaves or make penalt or other marks upon them.

 17. It shall be the duty of every member to bring to the notice of the Librarian any damage or injury in any book he intends to borrow from the Lending Library. Where he has failed to bring any such damage or injury to the notice of the Librarian such book shall be presumed to have been issued to him without any injury or damage.
- him without any injury or damage.

 18. Where the Librarian is satisfied that any book returned by a member has been soiled (except by fair wear and tear), written in marked, or otherwise injured, the borrower must impediately replace such book, or the set of books to which it may belong, or pay the value thereof or such other penalty at the Mayor may see fit to impose. In the case of refusal or neglect to do so, such value shall be recoverable by action at law with costs. When a new copy of a book or set of books is deposited or paid for to replace the one that has been injured, the person depositing or paying for the same shall be entitled to the damaged copy, after it has been stamped "The Public Library, Sold as damaged."
 - 19 (1) No member shall lend to any person any book borrowed by him from the Lending Library.
 - (2) Any member who contravenes the provision of paragraph
 (1) of this by-law shall forfeit his deposit and cese
 to be member of the Lending Library.
- 20. No member shall return to the Lending Library any book which to his knowledge has been used by any person suffering from any infectious or contagious disease. Where such is the case, such book shall be destroyed and the member shall pay to the Librarian the cost of its replacement, or the set of books to which it may belong, or pay the value thereof at the discretion of Librarian.
- 21. Where any dispute arises between two or more members of the Lending Library as to which member should borrow a particular book, the Librarian shall decide such dispute.
- 22. Any member who desires to borrow any book which has 22. Any member who desires to borrow any book which has already been borrowed by another member, shall enter his name and the title of the book in a register kept for that purpose and the Librarian shall, on such book being returned by the member who borrowed it, issue it to the member who has entered his name in the register. Where two or more members have entered their names in the register for any book, then such books shall be issued to them in the order in which they have entered their names in the register.
- 23. The deposit paid by any person in terms of by-law 6 (1) (d), shall, less any sum due from him to the Lending Library, be returned to him on his ceasing to be a member.

REFERENCE LIBRARY

- 24. No person shall make use of the Reference Library unless he-
 - (a) has obtained permission from the Librarian for that purpose; and
 (b) has signed the register kept in the Reference Library.
- 25. No person shall take out of the Reference Library any book, issued to him for purposes of reference, or any other book or part thereof, any pamphlet, periodical, picture, painting, engraving, map, chart, plan, manuscript, document, print or newspaper forming part of the collection of the Reference Library.

PART IV — GAZETTE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA (CEYLON) — MARCH 02, 1978

READING ROOM

- 26. No person shall make use of the Reading Room unless he
 - (a) has obtained permission from the Librarian for that purpose, and
 - (b) has signed the register kept in the Reading Room.
- 27. No person shall remove from the Reading Room my newspaper, periodical, magazine, map, document manuscript, print. plan, chart, painting, picture, engraving, pamphlet or any other article placed in or belonging to the Reading Room.

GENERAL

28. No person who is suffering or has recently suffered from any contagious, infectious or cutaneous disease or has recently been in attendance on any person suffering from such disease shall enter the premises of the public library until the periods of infection and incubation have elapsed.

29. No person shall—

(1) behave in any disorderly manner or comming in or about the premises of the public in or any property of the Galle Municipal about the public library; dry: Council

about the public library;

(3) enter, remain or loiter about the premises of the public library after such library is closed, without being able to give a satisfactors account of himself or for his presence;

(4) smoke or spit within the premises of the public library;

(5) gamble with die or cards or play any games within the premises of the public library;

(6) disturb the mers of the public library by shouting, singing songs of making any other noise in such library;

(7) enter the premises of the public library in unclean or improperly clad attire;

(8) bring any dog or other animal into the premises of the public library;

(9) sleep or eat any food in any part of the premises of the public library;

public library;

(10) enter or remain in any part of the library not set apart for the use of the public;

(11) assign any responsibility for the safe-keeping of any articles such as that, umbrellas, sticks, bags, parcels or any other pricies. Such articles shall be at the berrowers of readers own risk;

(12) wilfully or sticlessly or negligently soil, tear, cut, deface, write poin, damage, injure or destroy any book or document forming part of the contents of the library or misuse or carelessly or negligently deface, injure or destroy any part of the library or any property, furnishere or fittings therein;

obstact the librarian or any person acting under the ders of the Librarian, in the lawful exercise of his powers under these by-laws.

30. Any person who in the premises of the library-

(a) behaves in a disorderly manner;

(b) use violent abusive or obsence language;

(c) bets or gambles; or

who after warning persists in remaining in the library beyond the hours fixed for the closing thereof or who is not entitled to the use of the library, or who is suffering from an infectious or offensive disease may be excluded or removed from the library by an officer or servant of the library authority.

31. The number of working hours of the Librarian shall not exceed 6½ hours. The lunch interval shall not exceed one hour.

32. Every contravention of by-laws 19, 25, 27, 28, 29 and 30 shall be punishable with a fine not exceeding fifty rupees.

33. In these by-laws, unless the context otherwise requires, the expression "Librarian" means the person appointed by the Local Government Service Commission to be in charge of the library and includes his assistants.

3-12-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE DALUGAMA TOWN COUNCIL The Town Councils Ordinance

BY-LAW made by the Dalugama Town Council under sections 152 and 156 of the Town Councils Ordinance (Chapter 256), and approved by the Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs by virtue of the powers vested in him by section 153 of that Ordinance.

Additional Secretary,
Ministry of Public Administration,
Local Government and Home Affairs. Colombo, 13.2.1973.

BY-LAW

Conservancy

For the purpose of By-law 6 of Part XIX of the Standard By-laws adopted by the Council, the conservancy fee payable monthly to the Council, shall be at the rate of two rupees for each bucket conserved.

3-13—Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL ORDINANCE

BY-LAW under section 42 of the Village Council Ordinance (Chapter 257), made by the Village Council of Tennekumbura Village area in the Badulla District, and approved by the Minister of Public Administration, Local Government and Home Affairs, by virtue of the powers vested in him by that section.

> P. SIRIWARDENE, Additional Secretary, Ministry of Public Administration. Local Government and Home Affairs.

Colombo, 19.2.1973.

BY-LAW

The standard By-laws relating to water service adopted by the Village Council, are hereby amended, in so far as they apply to the Tennekumbura Village Council by insertion immediately after by-law 27 (2), of the following new paragraph:—

"(3) The owner or occupier of any premises to which a private connection from the water service established by the council has been given, shall upon notice duly served on him, pay a fee of five rupees for each \(\frac{1}{2}\) inch tap, in a case where water is used for the purpose of any business, and in a case where water is used for any domestic purpose, a fee of five rupees for the first \(\frac{1}{2}\) inch tap and a fee of rupees two and cents fifty for every additional \(\frac{1}{2}\) inch tap fixed at such premises; in respect of every month during which water is obtained from the said water service."

3-171-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

Miscellaneous Notices

THE BATTICALOA MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

Property Rate for 1978

IT is hereby notified that the Municipal Council of Batticaloa has in terms of section 230 of the Municipal Councils Ordinance (Chapter 252 of the Legislative Enactments of Ceylon), and subject to the Provisions contained therein, resolved to make and assess for the year 1973, a rate of 17 per cent. per centum being the same rate as was in force during the year 1972. on the annual values of all houses and buildings of every description and of all lands and tenements whatsoever within

Wards 1 to 14 of the Municipality, the said rate being payable in four quarterly instalments on or before March 31, June 30, September 29 and December 31, 1973, respectively.

K. THIYAGARAJAH, Mayor.

Municipal Office, Batticaloa, February 2, 1973. 3-536-Gezette No. 49 of 73.03.02 PART IV - THE GAZETTE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA (CEYLON) - MARCH. 0 2, 1973

THE MULLAITIVU TOWN COUNCIL

Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272) that the person mentioned in the schedule hereto has made application to me for a licence to carry on the trade of Butcher in the premises stated against his name in the aforesaid schedule during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the limits of the Mullaitivu Town Council who desires to object to the issue of the licence should furnish me in duplicate within fourteen days from the date of

this Gazette Notification a written statement of the grounds of his or her objection for the issue of the licence.

SCHEDULE

Name of Applicant S. Sivarajah

TradeSale of Beef at the Beef Stall No. 1

Place Public Market, Mullaitivu

M. S. BASTIAMPILLAI, Chairman Town Council, Mullaitivu.

Office of the Town Council, Mullaitivu, 1st February, 1973.

3-513-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE CHUNNAKAM TOWN COUNCIL

· The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 (2) of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272) that the person mentioned in the schedule hereunder has made application to me for carrying on the trade of butcher in the premises stated against his name on the aforesaid schedule, during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the limits of the Chunnakam Town, who desires to object to the issue of licence, should furnish to me in duplicate, within 14 days from the date of this Gazette, a written statement of the grounds of his objection for the issue of the licence.

SCHEDULE

Name and address of the Applicant M. Sultan, Uduvil, .. Sale of Beef Chunnakam

Premises at which the trade is to be carried on Stall No. 2, Market, Chunnakam

P. NAGALINGAM. Chairman, Town Council, Chunnakam.

Office of the Town Council, Chunnakam, 2nd February, 1973. 3-520-Gazette No. 19 of 73.03.02

SPECIAL COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE-DHARGA TOWN

Assessment Books for the Year 1973

NOTICE is hereby given under section 235 (1) of the Municipal Councils Ordinance (Chapter 252) as read with section 165 of the Town Councils Ordinance (Chapter 256) that the Assessment Books of Dharga Town for the year 1973, are now ready for inspection at this office during office hours.

I. L. M. MASHOOR, Special Commissioner.

Special Commissioner's Office, Dharga Town, 2nd February, 1973. 3-607-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE ERAVUR TOWN COUNCIL

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272) that the person mentioned in the Schedule hereto has made application to me for carrying on the trade of butcher in the premises stated in the aforesaid Schedule, during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the limits of the Eravur Town Council who desires to object to the issue of the licence should

furnish me in duplicate within 14 days from the date of this Gazette, a written statement of the grounds of his objection.

Office of the Town Council, Eravur, 13th February, 1973.

M. A. C. A. RAHUMAN, Chairman, Town Council, Eravur.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Applicant
1. M. Neina Mohamed, Girls'
School Road, Eravur 3 Name of Premises at which the Trade is to be carried on New Maket, Eravur 2 3-48-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE ERAVUR TOWN COUNCIL Assessment Books for the Year 1973

NOTICE is hereby given under section 235 (1) of the Municipal Council's Ordinance (Chapter 252), as read with section 165 of the Town Council. Ordinance (Chapter 256), that the Assess-

ment Books for the year 1973, are now ready and open for inspection at the Council's Office during office hours.

Office of the Town Council, Eravur, 9th February, 1973. 3-45-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02 M. A. C. A. RAHUMAN, Chairman. Town Council, Eravur.

THE KINNIYA TOWN

Assessment Books for the Year 1973

NOTICE is hereby given under section 235 (1) of the Municipal Councils Ordinance (Chapter 252) as read with section 165 of the Town Councils Ordinance (Chapter 256), that the Assessment Books of the Kinniya Town for the year 1973, are now ready and open for the public inspection at this office during office hours.

Office of the Special Commissioner, Kinniya Town, 3rd February, 1973. 3-18-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

B. A. J. CASINADER, Special Commissioner, Kinniya Town.

THE PANDATERUPPU TOWN COUNCIL

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 (2) of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272) that the person mentioned in the Schedule hereunder has made application to me for licence to carry on the trade of butcher in the premises stated against his name in the aforesaid Schedule during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the limits of the Pandateruppu Town Council who desires to object to the issue of the licence,

should furnish to me in duplicate, within 14 days, from the date of this Gazette, a written statement of the grounds of his objection for the issue of licence.

SCHEDULE

ant Name of Premises ...Beef Stall No. 1, ... Market, Pandateruppu Name of Applicant S. A. Aseez

Office of the Town Conneil, Pandateruppu, February 15. 1973. 3-74/1-Gazette No 49 of 73.03.02 R. SELVARATNAM, Chairman.

THE PANDATERUPPU TOWN COUNCIL

Assessment Books for the Year 1973

NOTICE is hereby given under section 165 of the Town Councils Ordinance (Chapter 256), as read with section 235 (1) of the Municipal Council Ordinance (Chapter 252), that the Assessment Books of the Town Council, Pandateruppu, are ready for

the year 1973, and are open for inspection at the Town Council's Office during the office hours.

R. SELVARATNAM,

Chairman, Town Council, Pandateruppu.

Office of the Town Council, Pandateruppu, February 15, 1973. 3-74/2-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE OFFICE OF THE SPECIAL COMMISSIONER, MATALE TOWN, MATALE

The Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272)

BY virtue of the powers vested in me by section 17 (1) of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272), I, William Earle de Alwis, Special Commissioner of Matale Town, Matale, being the proper authority, do hereby prohibit the slaughter and sale of meat within the administrative limits of the Municipality of Matale, during the year 1973, on the dates mentioned in the Schedule hereunder:—

SCHEDULE

1973 January-4, 12, 18, 26-Poya Days, February—3, 10, 16, 25—Poya Days, March—5, 12, 18, 27—Poya Days, April—3, 10, 17, 25—Poya Days, May—3, 9, 16, 25—Poya Days,
May—22—Republic Day.
June—1, 8, 15, 24, 30—Poya Days,
a lly—7, 14, 23, 30—Poya Days,
August—6, 13, 21, 28—Poya Days,
September—4, 12, 19, 26—Poya Days,
September—26—Bandaranaike Commemoration Day,
October—4, 11, 19, 26—Poya Days,
October—4—World Animals Day,
November—3, 10, 17, 25—Poya Days,
December—3, 9, 16, 24—Poya Days.

EARLE DE ALWIS, Special Commissioner, Matale Town, Matale.

Office of the Special Commissioner, Matale Town, Matale, January 30, 1973. 3-685-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDARD BY-LAWS) ACT (CHAPTER 261)

THE following resolution passed by the Village Council of Mullipothanai in the Trincomalee District under section 3 of the Local Authorities (Standard By-laws) Act (Chapter 261) is published in terms of that section.

Resolution

The Village Council of Mullipothanai in the Trincomalee District under sub-section (1) of section 3 of the Local Authorities (Standard By-laws) Act (Chapter 261), hereby resolves with effect from the date on which this resolution is published in the Gazette to adopt Parts 1 to 37 (inclusive of both Parts 1 and 37) of the Standard By-laws, framed by the Minister of Local Government and published in the Gazette No. 10,517 of April 10, 1953, and approved by resolution passed by the Senate and the House of Representatives, notice of which was published in

the Gazette No. 10,560 of August 7, 1953, and Part 38 of the Standard By-laws, framed by the Minister of Local Government and published in the Gazette No. 13,679 of June 21, 1963, and approved by resolution passed by the Senate and the House of Representatives, notice of which was published in the Gazette No. 14,287 of January 8, 1965, and parts 39 to 41 (inclusive of both the Parts 39 and 41) of the Standard By-laws framed by the Minister of Local Government and published in the Gazette No. 14,703 of July 8, 1966 and approved by resolution passed by the Senate and the House of Representatives, notice of which was published in the Gazette No. 14,835 of January 3, 1969.

Y. ABDUL JABAR, Chairman, Mullipothanai Village Council.

Office of the Mullipothanai Village Council, Mullipothanai, 15th November, 1972. 3-17-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF GANDAHAYA SOUTH NO. 2

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 201) as amended by section 6 of the Ordinance No. 44 of 1947, that the persons mentioned in the Schedule hereto have made applications to me for carryingon the trade of butchers in the premises stated against their names in the aforesaid Schedule during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the limits of Gandahaya South No. 2 V.C. area, who desires to object for the issue of licences to the applicants, should furnish me in duplicate within fourteen days of this Gazette, a written statement of the grounds of his objection for the issue of the licences.

SCHEDULE

Names of Applicants

Trade

Premises Abdul Cader Abdul Mutton Stall.. No. 121, Pupur Road, Galaha Pupuressa

Wahab M. H. Abdul Ajees

S. Idroos

Beef Stall Beef Stall

No. 122, Pupuressa Road, Galaha No. 123, Pupuressa Road, Galaha

V.C. Office Moragolla,, Talatuoya, February 14th, 1973. -Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

M. A DANIEL, Chairman, V.C. Gandahaya South No. 2.

THE BUTCHERS ORDINANCE

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272), that the person whose names are mentioned in the Schedule hereunder has made an application to me for a licence to carry on the trade of a butcher during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the limits of the Metkumoolai Village Council Iranai-Illuppaikulam, who desires to object to the issue of the licence is hereby called upon to furnish me in

duplicate, within 14 clear days from the date of the Gazette, a written statement of the grounds of his or her objection.

Nameof the AddressApplicant

Name of Premises

Madhu Administrator, Madhu Church

Mutton and Beef Stall at Madhu Camp

Office of the Village Council, Metkumoolai, Iranai-Illuppaikulam.

S. VYRAVANATHAR, Chairman.

3-426-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE MAMPURI VILLAGE COUNCIL

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272) as amended by section 6 of the Ordinance No. 44 of 1947, that the persons mentioned in the Schedule hereunder have made applications to me for licences to carry on the trade of butchers during the period from 1.3.73 to 12.3.73.

Any person residing within the administrative limits of the Mampuri Village Council who desires to object to the issue of licences should furnish me in duplicate within 14 days from the date of the Gazette notification, a written statement of the grounds of his or her objection for the issue of the licences.

SCHEDULE

Name	and	Address	of	Applicant	7				and
						1	Prer	nise s	

- 1. M. H. Vincent Appulamy of Beef and Mutton Stall at Talawila Katunériya ... 2. D. J. Costa of Palakuda ... Camp. Beef and Mutton Stall
- Talawila $\mathbf{Camp.}$ Beef and 3. K. Thaha of Anaimaduwa ... Mutton Stall
- Talawila Camp. 4. A. Costa of Wennappuwa ... Beef Mutton Stall at and
- Talawila Camp. 5. J. D. Anzal of Kandana ... Beef Mutton Stall at
- eef and Talawila Camp. 6. W. T. w. Wennappuwa T. M. Fernando of Beef and Mutton Stall at

Talawila Camp. G. MARIAMPILLAI, J. P., Mampuri Village Council, Chairman, Etalai, 15.2.73. Mampuri V. C., Etalai.

3-720-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL ALERNKERNY

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hreby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 201) as amended by Section 6 of the Ordinance No. 44 of 1947, that the person mentioned in the Schedule hreto have made application to me for carrying on the trade of the Butchers in the premisses stated against the Name in the aforesaid schedule during the year 1973 during the year 1973.

2. Any person residing within the limits of the village area of Alernkerny who desires to object to the issue of licence should

furnish to me in duplicat witnin 14 days from the date of this Gazette, a written statement of the grounds of his/her objection.

Office of the Village Council, Alernkerny, February 5th, 1973.

K. SELLATHAMBY, Chairman V.C. Alernkerny.

SCHEDULE Name of Applicatnt Nature of Trade Place of Trade

A. Mohamed Sultan

Ward No. 2.Alernkerny

3-606—Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

VILLAGE COUNCIL OFFICE GANGAPALATA YATI-NUWARA IN KANDY DISTRICT

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272), of the legislative Enactment of Ceylon that the person mentioned in the Schedule hereunder has made an application to me for licence to carry on the trade of butcher in the premises stated against hie name in the aforesaid Schedule during the year 1972 during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the administrative limits of the Village Council, Yatinuwara Gangapalata in Kandy District Village area who disires to object to the issue of licence is hereby

called upon to furnish to me in duplicate within fourteen days from the date of this Gazette notification, a written statement of grounds of his or her objections.

> Name of Applicant Discription of trade

Premises

Thamby Lebbe Maharoof Yahalatanna, Atuwa-Sale of Beef gawawatta, thalawa Muru-

> GUNARATNE MANELANGA, Chairman.

Muruthalawa, 31st January, 1973 V.C. Gangapalata Y. N. -696.—Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

THE UDUNUWARA KANDUPALATHA VILLAGE COUNCIL

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272) that the person mentioned in the Schedule hereto has made an application to me for carrying on the trade of butcher in the premises stated against his name in the aforesaid Schedule during the year 1973.

Any person residing within the limits of the Udunuwara Kandupalatha Village Council in the District of Kandy, who desires to object to the issue of the licence should furnish me in duplicate, within fourteen days from the date of this Gazette, a written statement of the grounds of his or her objection for the issue of the licence.

SCHEDULE

Name of Applicant

Nature of Trade

Mr. V. A. Caasim, Kurukuttala Beef . . Kuda Pinumwala, Kadugannawa

Galpihilla, Kurukut-tala, Kadugannawa

U. L. Noor Mohammed, Chairman, V. C. Udunuwara Kandupalaa

Office of the Village Council, Elpitikanda, Velamboda. 20th February, 1973

-131.--Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

Tirukovil

Akkaraipattu South, Thambiluvil,

AKKARAIPATTU SOUTH VILLAGE COUNCIL

The Butchers Ordinance

NOTICE is hereby given under section 7 of the Butchers Ordinance (Chapter 272); that the persons mentioned in the Schedule hereunder have made applications to me for licences to carry on the trade of Butcher in the premises stated against their names in the aforesaid Schedule, during the year 1973.

person residing within the limits of the Akkaraipattu South Village Council who desires to object to the issue of the licences, is hereby called upon to furnish to me, in duplicate, within seven (7) days from the date of this Gazette, written statements of the grounds of his or her objections.

SCHEDULE

Name and address of Nature of Name of Premises applicant Trade Market Square

(1) Samithamby Canagaratnam, Pork Kalliyantivu, Tirukovil
 (2) Kanapathipillai Thangavel Pork

Thambiluvil Market Square arket Squar Thambiluvil

Village Council.

NADARAJAH THARMALINGAM, J.P., Chairman V. C. Akkaraipattu South, Thapabiluvil.

February 6, 1973. 3-712/1-Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

AKKARAIPATTÜ SOUTH VILLAGE COUNCIL

Vehicles and Animals Tax for the year 1973

THE VILLAGE COUNCILS ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 257) OF THE LEGISLATIVE ENACTMENTS (1956) OF CEYLON

IT is hereby notified that the Akkaraipattu South Village Council has :-

(a) Under section 39 of the Village Councils Ordinance, (Chapter 257) impose for the year 1973, a tax on the vehicles and animals mentioned in the Schedule hereto at the rates specified in that Schedule.

(3) Iceing fish ... (4) Curing planks

(b) Under section 39 (6) of the Village Council Ordinance (Chapter 257) ordered that the said tax payable on or before March 31, 1973.

Village Council, Akkaraipattu South, Thambiluvil, February 6, 1973.

03-712/2-Gezette No. 49 of 73.03.02

03-712/3—Gazette No. 49 of 73.03.02

NADARAJAH THARMALINGAM, J.P. Chairman V., C., Akkaraipattu South.

SCHEDULE			
		Rs.	c.
For every bicycle or tricycle:			
(a) if used for trade purpose	`	2	0
(b) if used for other than trade purpose		. 1	0
For very single bullock cart		2	50
For very double bullock cart		4	0

AKKARAIPATTU SOUTH VILLAGE COUNCIL		Annu Duty	
The Village Councils Ordinance (Chapter 257)		Rs.	c.
IT is hereby notified that the Village Council, Akkaraipattu South, in terms of section 38 of the Village Councils Ordinance (Chapter 257) has determined that, with effect from th date on which this notification is published in the Gazette of the Republic of Sri Lanka (Ceylon)— The rates and fees for licences in respect of trade and businesses shall be those set out in the Schedule (Parts I, II, III and IV) hereto and in lieu of the rates and fees hitherto levied in respect	(5) Storing artificial manure (6) Curing or drying tobacco (7) Manufacturing Cigars or beedies (8) Manufacturing Copra (9) Storing Copra (10) Storing straw (11) Manufacturing Jewellery (12) Manufacturing of treacle	10 10 25 25 5 15	0 0 0 0 0 0
of those licences.	PART III		
NADARAJAH THARMALINGAM,	Dangerous and Offensive Trades:		
Chairman, V.C., Akkaraipattu South. Village Council, Akkaraipattu South, Thambiluvil, February 6, 1973.	 Burning bricks or tiles Keeping a workshop for repairing motor vehicles Keeping a petrol pumping station Keeping a radio shop or a work shop Sale of Chemicals 		0
SCHEDULE	PART IV		
PART I	Other Trades:	,	
Dangerous Trades (as declared in Government Gazette No. 10,665 of April 23, 1954)— Annual Duty Rs. c. (1) Quarrying cabook, gravel or metal 30 0 (2) Manufacture or storing fibre	(1) Keeping a Dairy (2) Keeping a Meat stall (private) (3) Keeping a hair saloon or a barbers shop (4) Laundry (5) Mutton Stall (6) Vegetable Stall (7) Fish Stall outside market area (8) Ize Cream travelling cart or bicycle (9) Keeping a Bakery (10) Keeping an Eating House (11) Keeping a tea and coffee boutique (12) Keeping a rice huller with less than 3 persons (13) Keeping a huller and a grunder (14) Keeping a milk bar or an establishment to make curd and extract ghee. (15) Keeping a shop for the sale of provision goods—	5 5 25 5 10 2 20 20 10 35 40	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Offensive Trades:	wholesale	50	0
(1) Storing cured or dry fish	(16) Keeping a shop for the sale of provision goods—retail		0 0 0

NEW SCALE OF CHARGES FOR NOTICES AND ADVERTISEMENTS IN THE GAZETTE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA (CEYLON) EFFECTIVE AS FROM 1st DECEMBER, 1968

(Issued every Friday)

- 1. All Notices and Advertisements are published at the risk of the Advertisers.
- 2. All Notices and Advertisements by Private Advertisers may be handed in or sent direct by post together with full payment to the Government Printer, Government Press, Colombo.
- 3. The office hours are from 8 a.m. to 12 noon on Saturdays and 8 a.m. to 3.30 p.m. on other days.
 - 4. Cash transactions close at 11 a.m. on Saturdays and 2.30 p.m. on other days.
- 5. All Notices and Advertisements must be prepaid. Notices and Advertisements sent direct by post should be accompanied by Money Order, Postal Order or Cheque, made payable to the Government Printer. Postage stamps will not be accepted in payment of advertisements.
- 6. To avoid errors and delay "copy" should be on one side of the paper only and preferably typewritten.
 - 7. All signatures should be repeated in block letters below the written signature.
- 8. Notices re change of name from Non-Government Servants and Trade Advertisements are not accepted for publication.
- 9. Advertisements purporting to be issued under Orders of Courts will not be inserted unless signed or attested by a Proctor of the Supreme Court.
- 10. The authorized Scale of Charges for Notices and Advertisements is as follows from December 1, 1968:—

			ALCO	••	
One inch or less	••••		20	0	
Every additional inch or fraction there	eef	***	20	0	
One column or } page of Gazette	•••	***	220	0	
Two columns or one page of Gazette	•••	•••	440	0	

All fractions of an inch will be charged for at the full inch rate.

- 11. The "Gazette of the Republic of Sri Lanka (Ceylon)" is published every Friday. Day of publication is subject to alteration in any week where Public Holidays intervene.
- 12. With effect from December 1, 1968, all Notices and Advertisements should reach the Government Printer, Government Press, Colombo, as shown in Schedule of separate notice published at the end of each part of the Gazette.
 - 13. REVISED SUBSCRIPTION RATES EFFECTIVE FROM DECEMBER 1, 1968* :-

Fotelga

Rs. c.

60

Government Gazette (Ammal) Local Rs. c. Each Part ... 46 9 ...

One Section of Part I ... 36 0 ... 42 0
Two Sections of Part I ... 43 50 ... 51 50

Subscriptions to the "Gazette of the Republic of Sri Lanka (Ceylon)" are booked per periods of not less than six months so as to terminate at the end of a calendar year or half-year only.

*Retes for Single Copies, if available in stock

(a) (i) Each Part of the Gasette within one month from the date of the Gazette	Postage (Local)
(a) (i) Each Part of the Gesette within one month	Cento
from the date of the Course	
	20
(ii) Bach Part of the Gazette after one meath from	
the date of the Gazette 1 fi	20
(b) (1) Each Scotton of Part I of the Gasette within	
one mouth from the date of the Gazette 9 30	15
(ii) Each Section of Part I of the Gazette ufter one	4
A SA	15-
month from the case of the casette 0 69	15

All resultances should be usede in favour of the Superhetendent, Government Publications Barrare, F. O. Bex 300, Secretarist Building, Calculet, who is responsible for booking subscriptions and for sale of single capits.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING PUBLICATION OF GAZETTE

THE weekly issue of the Gazette of the Republic of Sri Lanka (Ceylon) is normally published on Fridays. If a Friday happens to be a Public Holiday the Gazette is published on the working day immediately preceding the Friday. Thus the last date specified for the receipt of notices for publication in the Gazette also varies depending on the incidence of public holidays in the week concerned.

The Schedule below shows the dates of publication and the latest time by which notices should be received for publication in the respective weekly Gazette. All notices received out of times specified below will not be published. Such notices will be returned to the sender by post for necessary amendment and return if publication is desired in a subsequent issue of the Gazette. It will be in the interest of all concerned if those desirous of ensuring the timely publication of notices in the Gazette make it a point to see that sufficient time is allowed for postal transmission of notices to the Government Press.

The Government Printer does not accept payments of subscriptions for the Government Gazette.

Payments should be made direct to the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau, P. O.

Box 500, Secretariat, Colombo 1.

Note.—Payments for inserting Notices in the Gazette of the Republic of Sri Lanka (Ceylon) will be received by the Government Printer and not by the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau.

Schedule

1973

Month	Date of P	ublication	Last Date and Time of Acceptance of Note for Publication in the Gazette				
FEBRUARY	Friday	2. 2.73		12 noon	Frida y	26. 1.73	
	Friday	9. 2.73		12 noon	Friday	2. 2.73	
	Thursday	15. 2.73		12 noon	Friday	9. 2.73	
•	Friday	23. 2.73		12 noon	Thursday	15. 2.73	
MARCH	Friday	2. 3.73	••	12 noon	Friday	23. 2.73	
	Friday	9. 3.73		12 noon	Friday	2. 3.73	
	Friday	16. 3.73		12 noon	Friday	9. 3.73	
•	Friday	23. 3.73		12 noon	Friday	16. 3.73	
•	Friday	30. 3.73	• •	12 noon	Friday	23. 3.73	
APRIL	Friday	6. 4.73		12 noon	Friday	30. 3.73	
	Wednesday	11. 4.73		12 noon	Friday	6. 4.73	
	Thursday	19. 4.73		12 noon	Wednesday	11. 4.73	
•	Friday	27. 4.73	••	12 noon	Thursday	19. 4.73	

L. W. P. PEIRIS, Government Printer.

Department of Government Printing, Colombo, August 18, 1972.